ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS COW TTEE
April 30, 2002
3:40 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Gene Therriault, Chair
Senat or Randy Phillips, Vice Chair
Senat or Ben Stevens

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Rick Hal ford
Senat or Bettye Davis

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 305(STA) am
"An Act prohibiting certain state enpl oynent, a student |oan, or
a permanent fund dividend for a person who fails to register for
the mlitary selective service; and providing for an effective
date."

MOVED SCSHB 305( STA) OUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 509(STA)
"An Act relating to Alaska children's trust registration plates;
and providing for an effective date.”

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE CONCURRENT RESCLUTI ON NO. 33
Rel ating to Ovarian Cancer Awareness Month.
MOVED SCR 33 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 458
"An Act relating to periods of probation for state enpl oyees; and
providing for an effective date."”

MOVED HB 458 OUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON
HB 305 - See State Affairs m nutes dated 4/25/02.
HB 509 — No previous action to record.

SCR 33 — No previous action to record.
HB 458 — No previous action to record.

W TNESS REG STER

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- April 30, 2002



Col | een Shaub

Aide to Representative Lisa Mirkowski
Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 305.

Ay Erickson

Aide to Representative Lisa Mirkowski
Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 509.

Char | es Hosack

Deputy Director

Di vi sion of Mdtor Vehicles

Department of Adm nistration

PO Box 110200

Juneau, AK 99811-0200

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 509.

Shari Paul

Proj ect Coordi nator

Children’s Trust

Department of Education & Early Devel opnent
801 W10'" St.

Juneau, AK 99801-1894

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 5009.

Geran Tarr

Aide to Senator Johnny Ellis

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SCR 33.

Deb Donoho

Al aska Chapter of the National Ovarian Cancer Coalition
No address given

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SCR 33.

Ki m Sext on

Al aska Chapter of the National Ovarian Cancer Coalition
No address given

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SCR 33.

Mel ani e Lesh

Aide to Representative Bill Hudson

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 458.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 30, 2002



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-26, SIDE A

CHAI RVAN CGENE THERRIAULT <called the Senate State Affairs
Commttee neeting to order at 3:40 p.m Present were Senators
Stevens, Phillips and Chairman Therriault.

The first order of business before the conmttee was HB 305.

#HB 305

HB 305- NONCOVPLI ANCE W TH SELECTI VE SERVI CE

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT said there was a conmmittee substitute for HB
305 in front of the commttee. Sec. 1, which was the title, was
del eted. This incorporated Armendnent #2. On page 4, a nhew Sec.
2 was added, incorporating Amendnent #1, ensuring that HB 305
woul d al so apply to new statute that hadn’t gone into effect yet
regardi ng the Al aska Student Loan program At the top of page 4
and throughout the bill, the |I|anguage “or has cone into
conpliance within 30 days of being notified of their |ack of
conpliance” was deleted. Sec. 7 added a separate effective date
for the Al aska Student Loan sections of the bill because the
Al aska Comm ssion on Postsecondary Education wanted HB 305 to go
into effect in July and the Permanent Fund Dividend D vision
wanted it to go into effect at the end of the year.

He asked for a notion to accept the \O version of HB 305 as the
wor ki ng docunent .

SENATOR STEVENS noved the \O version of HB 305 as the working
docunent .

There being no objection, the \O version of HB 305 was adopted as
t he wor ki ng docunent.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if the sponsor had any problenms wth
t he changes in the CS.

COLLEEN SHAUB, Aide to Representative Lisa Mirkowski, sponsor of
HB 305, said there were none.

CHAI RMAN  THERRI AULT noted the zero fiscal note from the
Depart ment of Revenue. He believed the CS would not change the
fiscal note. He asked if there were any other issues to cone
before the conmttee on HB 305. There were not. He asked for
the wll of the commttee.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 30, 2002



SENATOR STEVENS noved SCSHB 305(STA) out of committee wth
attached zero fiscal note and individual recomendati ons.

There being no objection, SCSHB 305(STA) was noved out of

commi ttee with att ached fiscal not e and i ndi vi dual
recommendati ons.
#

The next order of business was HB 509.
#HB 509

HB 509- ALASKA CHI LDREN S TRUST LI CENSE PLATES

AMY ERI CKSON, Aide to Representative Lisa Mirkowski and the House
Labor and Commerce Committee, read the following fromthe sponsor
statenent :

House Bill 509 nmakes one m nor change to Al aska statute
to allow the Alaska Children’s Trust (ACT) to market
Alaska Children’s Trust l|icense plates to commerci al
notor vehicle owners. Current Al aska statute only

allows owners of noncommercial vehicles to apply for
and purchase ACT |license plates.

This small change will allow the Alaska Children' s
Trust to respond positively to requests by industry and
private business to purchase ACT |icense plates for
fleet vehicles and to market sales to an additional
56,500 vehicle owners who support the mission and
activities of the Alaska Children's Trust. The $100
one-tine fee could increase the trust by $5,650,000 for
the prevention of child abuse and negl ect.

The Alaska Children’s Trust 1is a savings account
dedicated to funding comrunity-initiated projects to

elimnate child abuse and negl ect. The trust’s funds
grow through gifts, bequests, corporate and individual
contri butions, | egi sl ative appropriations, f eder al
funds, and sales of heirloom nmarriage and birth
certificates as well as children’s trust |I|icense
pl at es.

MS. ERI CKSON said passage of HB 305 would expand ACT s savings
account and inprove their ability to advance the projects and
m ssi ons of ACT.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- April 30, 2002



CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there was any discussion about why
the original statute did not include conmercial vehicles.

M5. ERICKSON said Representative Bunde brought that up and Mary
Mar shburn, Director of the D vision of Mtor Vehicles (DW),
suggested there wasn’t nuch demand for it. Ms. Marshburn was
al so concerned that opening the plates for conmmercial vehicles
would cost DW $30,000 to $50,000 to change their conputer
system

CHAl RVAN THERRI AULT asked if she said that at the time.
M5. ERI CKSON said Ms. Marshburn said that recently.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT asked if that was given as a reason at the
time of the original |egislation.

M5. ERI CKSON sai d she nmay have m sunderstood his question.
CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any further questions.

SENATOR PHI LLIPS said he was concerned about offering ACT pl ates
to commercial vehicles.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT said he and Senator Phillips had discussed
opening the plates up to vanity plates. HB 509 does not include
vanity plates. It only includes the ACT plates.

M5. ERICKSON said she was talking about the vanity plates as
wel | .

SENATOR PHI LLIPS asked if only the standard plates were offered
to commercial vehicles or if DW offered a variety of plates to
comercial vehicles, such as the veterans’ plates, the Purple
Heart plates or the Pearl Harbor plates.

CHARLES HOSACK, Deputy Director of the Division of Mtor
Vehi cl es, Department of Adm nistration, said they did not.

SENATOR PHI LLIPS said he had a problemw th that.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if DW had a problemw th HB 5009.

MR. HOSACK said they did not. They believed the proceeds would
go to a worthwhile cause. He said it would cause a small problem
with the way DW' s conputer systemis set up. In the past year

and a half to two years, DW issued about 275 ACT plates. Based
on those nunbers, they didn't think there would be a huge influx

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 30, 2002



of requests for the plates. They were willing to accept the

probl ens of keeping their conputer system straight. He said
DW's only concern was the talk about opening the conmmerci al
option up to other specialty plates. In that case, they would

have to restructure their conputer system because a |lot of their
statistical information is based on the fees for the type of
license plate a vehicle has. Commercial vehicles are |unped into
four categories for different weights. For noncommerci al
vehicles, you can get vanity plates, veterans plate, Pear
Har bor pl ates, etc. He said DW has about 60 different class
codes for nonconmercial vehicles. They were hoping to keep that
from spreading to comercial vehicles.

SENATOR PHILLIPS said if it was going to be done for one, it
ought to be done for all, or it should be done for none. He' s
concerned that in the future there will be others wanting to have
the sane thing done for their cause.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT said with the exception of University plates,
the extra revenue from the sales of the other plates such as
veterans’ plates and Pearl Harbor plates goes to the state
treasury.

MR. HOSACK said that was correct. The revenue from ACT and
University plates is identified separately in DW s system so the
Legi sl ature can appropriate the funds.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said the veterans wouldn’'t be likely to ask
the Legislature to have their plates on comercial vehicles
because they don’'t derive any revenue from the sale of the
pl at es.

MR. HOSACK said he hoped not. He said he had not heard of any
such novenent.

SENATOR STEVENS asked about the University.

MR. HOSACK said he had not heard anything about the University.
He said the reason the law was witten to include only passenger
vehi cl es is because the | anguage was copied fromthe statutes for
other personalized plates, al | of which are limted to
noncomrer ci al vehi cl es.

SENATOR STEVENS asked how many University plates had been issued.
MR. HOSACK said there are four different University plates. The

University of Al aska Fairbanks has the nost plates wth between
300 and 400 pl ates. The University of Alaska Anchorage has a

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 30, 2002



little over 100 plates. The University of Al aska Southeast has
about 20 and the Prince WIIliam Sound Community Col | ege has about
five or six.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if it was discussed to open the
noncomrerci al option for plates to the University since ACT and
the University were the only two license plates wth dedicated
funds.

M5. ERICKSON said it had not been discussed.
MR. HOSACK said he was not aware of it being discussed.

SENATOR STEVENS said if it was opened up to one charity, it ought
to be opened up for the other.

SENATOR PHI LLIPS said in the future the veterans m ght want to do
the sane thing to build a nenori al

SENATOR STEVENS said the Legislature just passed a bill to that
effect.

SENATOR PHI LLIPS said they could ask for sonmething simlar funded
by |icense pl ates.

SENATOR STEVENS sai d they woul d have to go through the process of
getting it approved by the Legislature again.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS said that was the problem

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT said it would take further legislation to do
t hat . He asked M. Hosack if he had any further comrents. He
did not. He asked if there was anybody present who would like to
testify on HB 5009.

SHARI PAUL, Project Coordinator of the Children’s Trust, said she
was there to answer questions.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT asked for the current bal ance of the ACT
MS. PAUL said it was about $9.6 mllion.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT said he had not prepared a CS to HB 509. He

asked if there were any anendnments. He noted the bill would al so
be referred to finance because it had a small fiscal note. He
asked for the will of the commttee.

SENATOR PHI LLIPS npbved Anendnent #1 to delete “commercial and”

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- April 30, 2002



frompage 1, line 6.
SENATOR STEVENS obj ect ed.
SENATOR PHI LLI PS wi t hdrew Arendnent #1.

CHAI RMAN THERRI AULT asked Senator Phillips if it was his
intention to oppose HB 509.

SENATOR PHI LLIPS said it was.

CHAI RMVAN THERRI AULT said the bill would be held in commttee
because there were not enough votes to nove it out of commttee.

CSHB 509(STA) was held in conmttee.
#

The next order of business was SCR 33.

#SCR 33

SCR 33- OVARI AN CANCER AWARENESS MONTH

GERAN TARR, Aide to Senator Johnny Ellis, said SCR 33 was a
sinple resolution recognizing Septenber as Ovarian Cancer
Awar eness Mont h. In August of 2000, Kim Sexton and Deb Donoho
formed the Alaska Chapter of the National Ovarian Cancer
Coalition (NOCC), hoping to be able to educate wonen about
ovarian cancer, which is often diagnosed too |ate. They hoped
that by having Ovarian Cancer Awareness Month, they would be able
to get the nessage to wonmen about screening opportunities. She
said there is not a conprehensive screening program for ovarian
cancer |like there is for breast cancer. She said the rates of
ovarian cancer are rising dramatically. The Al aska Chapter of
NOCC was trying to encourage wonmen to consider ovarian cancer
earlier rather than after they ve ruled out all other potenti al
health problenms. She noted the following bullet points fromthe
sponsor st atenent:

e In the United States, nore wonen die of ovarian
cancer each year than of cervical and endonetri al
cancers conbi ned.

* Early detection is the key to survival; if the
cancer is diagnosed while confined to the ovary
the five-year survival rate reaches 93% on
aver age.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 30, 2002



M5. TARR said the Anchorage Assenbly passed resolutions and the
Governor nmade proclamations recognizing Septenber as Ovarian
Cancer Awareness Month for a couple of years. She said there was
a national canpaign to pass resolutions permanently recogni zing
Sept enber as Ovari an Cancer Awar eness Mont h.

DEB DONCHO, Al aska Chapter of NOCC, said SCR 33 was inportant to
t hem because we need to educate wonen of the synptons of ovarian
cancer. She said Ovarian Cancer Awareness Mnth would be a way
to get their attention. She said if wonen knew what the synptons
are, they could check for ovarian cancer in the beginning instead
of waiting until everything else was rul ed out.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any questions. There
wer e not .

KI M SEXTON, Al aska Chapter of NOCC, said before she was diagnosed
wi th ovarian cancer, she had never heard of the disease. She
said they did a wonen’s show in Anchorage the previous weekend
and she was alarned at the anobunt of wonen that they educated on
the fact that a pap snear doesn’t detect ovarian cancer. She
said wonen don’t know about the di sease and need to be educat ed.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any questions. There
were none. He noted the zero fiscal note attached to the bill
He said he had not prepared a CS. He asked if there were any
amendnent s. There were not. He asked for the wll of the
comittee.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS noved SCR 33 fromconmmittee with attached fisca
note and i ndi vi dual recommendati ons.

There being no objection, SCR 33 was noved from conmttee wth
attached fiscal note and individual recomendati ons.

#

The final order of business was HB 458.

#HB 458

HB 458- STATE EMPLOYEE PROBATI ONARY PERI GD

MELANI E LESH, Aide to Representative Bill Hudson, sponsor of HB
458, said HB 458 was a change to the state personnel statutes in
AS 39. 25. 150. It would allow for the extension of probationary
periods that are currently limted to 12 nonths when an agreenent
has been col |l ectively bargai ned.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 30, 2002



CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT asked if she heard anything in previous
testimony on HB 458 that would indicate why the probationary
period was set at 12 nonths and the flexibility was not built
into the | aw.

M5. LESH said Dave Stewart, Personnel Manager at the Departnent
of Adm nistration, talked about the Police Standards Council,

which has a 14-nonth probationary period. She said there was
al so a court case that suggested that the Legislature | ook at the
statutory limtation because it doesn’'t allow for exceptions.

For instance, she said if soneone in the police-training program
were injured, they would have to be let go after the 12-nonth
probationary period because they would autonatically becone a
per manent enpl oyee.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked what case that was.

M5. LESH said the court case did not involve police standards.
The case was Baseden vs. State of Al aska.

SENATOR PHI LLI PS asked if the case was in Juneau or Anchorage.

MS. LESH believed the case had initiated in Juneau. She said a
person was told by the State they would like to extend his
probationary period and he was given advice by the Al aska State
Enpl oyees Association that he was a probationary enployee.
However, he was automatically a pernmanent enpl oyee because of the
statutory limtation. He took a course of action and the court
ruled he was a pernanent enployee and other avenues of recourse
were avail able. She said it was confusion over the statutory
limt that put himand the State in that position.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT asked if there were any questions from
comm ttee nenbers.

SENATOR PHI LLIPS wondered if the confusion over state statutes
was only when a |lawer nmade it that way.

CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said eventually the courts had to interpret
the | aw

SENATOR PHI LLI PS wondered how nmuch the case cost the State of
Al aska.

MS. LESH didn’'t believe the case had been resol ved.

SENATOR PHILLIPS said in that case it would still be using State
noneys.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- April 30, 2002



CHAI RVAN THERRI AULT said, “The process of governing ourselves as
a society is expensive and cunbersone.” He asked if there was
any opposition to the bill

M5. LESH said there had not been any. She said there was a
question in the House State Affairs Commttee about who was
excluded. She said the people who were excluded were those who
were not represented, those being legislative enployees and
appoi ntees, who don’t have probationary peri ods.

CHAl RMAN THERRI AULT noted the zero fiscal note. He said he had
not prepared a CS. He asked if there were any anendnments. There
were none. He asked for the will of the committee.

SENATOR STEVENS noved HB 458 from commttee with attached zero
fiscal note and individual recomendati ons.

There being no objection, HB 458 was noved from conmttee wth
attached fiscal note and individual recomendati ons.
#

ADJ CQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the Senate
State Affairs Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 4:05 p. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- April 30, 2002



